BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

TUESDAY 14TH JANUARY 2025
AT 6.00 P.M.

PARKSIDE SUITE, PARKSIDE, MARKET STREET, BROMSGROVE,
WORCESTERSHIRE, B61 8DA

MEMBERS: Councillors H. J. Jones (Chairman), M. Marshall (Vice-Chairman),

A. Bailes, S. J. Baxter, J. Clarke, S. M. Evans, D. J. A. Forsythe,
E. M. S. Gray, R. E. Lambert, B. McEldowney and J. D. Stanley

AGENDA
To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes
Declarations of Interest

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests or Other
Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm
the nature of those interests.

To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Planning
Committee held on 10th December 2024 (TO FOLLOW)

Updates to planning applications reported at the meeting (to be circulated
prior to the start of the meeting)

24/00246/REM - Reserved Matters Application for Phase 2. 437 residential
units (Class C3) on land abutting Kidderminster Road/Perryfields Road, in
accordance with the Outline Planning Permission for 1,300 dwellings
(application reference 16/0335) allowed at appeal under reference APP/
P1805/W/20/3265948. The Reserved Matters application seeks consent in
line with condition 1 for detailed matters of appearance, landscaping, layout,

-1-



and scale.Land at Kidderminster Road, Bromsgrove. Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd.
(Pages 7 - 50)

6. 24/01218/FUL - Single storey rear extension to provide larger
kitchen/dining/family area. 477 Birmingham Road, Marlbrook, Worcestershire,
B61 OHZ. Mr. A. Godwin (Pages 51 - 60)

7. Planning Performance Information - Quarter Two (1 July 2024 - 30 September
2024) (Pages 61 - 70)

8. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting.

SUE HANLEY
Chief Executive
Parkside
Market Street
BROMSGROVE
Worcestershire
B61 8DA

6th January 2025



If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact
Pauline Ross
Democratic Services Officer

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA
Tel: 01527 881406
Email: p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers,
please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above.

Please note that this is a public meeting and will be live streamed for
general access via the Council’s YouTube channel.

You are able to see and hear the livestream of the meeting from the
Committee Pages of the website, alongside the agenda for the meeting.

PUBLIC SPEAKING

The usual process for public speaking at meetings of the Planning
Committee will continue to be followed subject to some adjustments.
For further details a copy of the amended Planning Committee
Procedure Rules can be found on the Council’s website.

The process approved by the Council for public speaking at meetings of
the Planning Committee is (subject to the discretion and control of the
Chair), as summarised below:-

1) Introduction of application by Chair
2) Officer presentation of the report
3) Public Speaking - in the following order: -
a. objector (or agent/spokesperson on behalf of objectors);
b. applicant, or their agent (or supporter);
c. Parish Council representative (if applicable);
d. Ward Councillor

Each party will have up to a maximum of 3 minutes to speak, subject to
the discretion of the Chair.

Speakers will be called in the order they have notified their interest in
speaking to the Democratic Services Officer and will be invited to
unmute their microphone and address the Committee face-to-face or via
Microsoft Teams.

4) Members’ questions to the Officers and formal debate / determination.


mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Notes:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Anyone wishing to address the Planning Committee on applications
on this agenda must notify the Democratic Services Officer on 01527
881406 or by email to p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

by 12 noon on Friday 10" January 2025.

Advice and assistance will be provided to public speakers as to how
to access the meeting and those registered to speak will be invited to
participate face-to-face or via a Microsoft Teams invitation.

Provision has been made in the amended Planning Committee
procedure rules for public speakers who cannot access the meeting
via Microsoft Teams, and those speakers will be given the
opportunity to submit their speech in writing to be read out by an
officer at the meeting.

Please take care when preparing written comments to ensure that the
reading time will not exceed three minutes. Any speakers wishing to
submit written comments must do so by 12 noon on Friday 10t
January 2025.

Reports on all applications will include a summary of the responses
received from consultees and third parties, an appraisal of the main
planning issues, the case officer’s presentation and a
recommendation. All submitted plans and documentation for each
application, including consultee responses and third party
representations, are available to view in full via the Public Access
facility on the Council’s website www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

It should be noted that, in coming to its decision, the Committee can
only take into account planning issues, nhamely policies contained in
the Bromsgrove District Plan (the Development Plan) and other
material considerations, which include Government Guidance and
other relevant policies published since the adoption of the
Development Plan and the “environmental factors” (in the broad
sense) which affect the site.

5) Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when the

Committee might have to move into closed session to consider
exempt or confidential information. For agenda items that are exempt
the public are excluded and the Live Streaming is stopped.


mailto:p.ross@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk
http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/

Bromsgrove
District Council

www.bromsgrove.gov.uk

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC

Access to Information

The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain
documents. Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act.

>

>

You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before the
date of the meeting.

You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting.

You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on which
reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date of the
meeting. These are listed at the end of each report.

An electronic register stating the names and addresses and electoral areas
of all Councillors with details of the membership of all Committees etc. is
available on our website.

A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to items to
be considered in public will be made available to the public attending
meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its Committees/Boards.

You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council has

delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers concerned,
as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of Delegation.

You can access the following documents:

» Meeting Agendas

» Meeting Minutes
» The Council’'s Constitution

at www.bromsgrove.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5

Name of Applicant Proposal Plan Ref.
Taylor Wimpey Reserved Matters Application for Phase 2: 24/00246/REM
UK Ltd. 437 residential units (Class C3) on land

abutting Kidderminster Road/Perryfields
Road, in accordance with the Outline
Planning Permission for 1,300 dwellings
(application reference 16/0335) allowed at
appeal under reference APP/
P1805/W/20/3265948. The Reserved
Matters application seeks consent in line
with condition 1 for detailed matters of
appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale.

Land at Kidderminster Road, Bromsgrove
RECOMMENDATION:
(1) MINDED to APPROVE Reserved Matters
(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Assistant Director for Planning,
Leisure and Cultural Services to agree the final scope and detailed wording and

numbering of conditions as set out in the list at the end of this report.

Consultations

Worcestershire Highways — Bromsgrove

No objection

The Highway Authority has undertaken a robust assessment of the application. Based
on analysis of the information provided, the Highway Authority advises no objection
subject to planning conditions.

The site at Perryfields is included as an allocation (BROM2) in the adopted Bromsgrove
District Plan 2011-2030.

The off-site highway and transport implications of the development on the highway
network within Bromsgrove have been considered as part of the outline consent granted
on appeal. This application deals with matters of the layout, scale, appearance, and
landscaping. These Highway Observations therefore deal with the above matters in the
context of the public highway.

The Highway Authority previously advised deferral of the application in formal

observations dated 8 April 2024, 8 July 2024, and 24 October 2024 citing a number of
issues with the original and revised iterations of the layout. The Highway Authority has
undertaken a review of the latest revised layout and associated drawings/ documents.

The Phase 2 development will take access from the proposed roundabout junction with

Kidderminster Road connecting via a new spine road (this roundabout access has
been consented as part of the outline planning application 16/0335 allowed at appeal

Page 7



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

under reference APP/ P1805/W/20/3265948).

This is the second section of the spine road and where, subject to agreement and
consent from the Local Planning Authority, the spine road will continue to run through
the site and connect at the northern end at Stourbridge Road as future parcels
associated with the outline consent are promoted. Phase 1 development was
consented on 10 November 2023.

The section of the spine road relevant to this planning application has been designed
in accordance with the principles established as part of the outline planning consent

set by the Planning Inspectorate and as part of the consented phase 1 development

in a consistent and coherent manner.

To achieve these established principles, a 6.7m wide road has been provided where
development serves the proposed commercial/ employment uses in accordance with
the adopted Streetscape Design Guide which then becomes a 6.1m wide road. There
is localised widening at bends along the spine road which is necessary to safely
accommodate two-way traffic based on vehicle tracking data. The required 20mph
design speed has been achieved through appropriate horizontal alignment.

Forward visibility at the bends along the spine road (25m) and junction visibility at all
the side roads (25m) will be provided in accordance with the required standard. Where
the southern employment area is proposed close to the consented roundabout access
with Kidderminster Road, the visibility splays have been extended to 38m.

All proposed footways adjacent to properties are 2m wide. The proposed turning heads
are designed in accordance with the Streetscape Design Guide and there are 1m
service margins provided at the back of all turning heads where there is no direct
frontage.

There is a proposed roundabout within the phase 2 scheme providing access to the
northern employment area. This has been designed in accordance with the relevant
standard and the Applicant has confirmed there are no identified Departures from
Standards.

Similarly, the mini-roundabout adjacent to plot 63b has been designed in accordance with
the relevant standard and there are no proposed Departures from Standards. This has
been confirmed by the Applicant. Departures from Standards will not be accepted given
the provision of new infrastructure.

Parts of the Phase 2 development area impacts upon the existing Perryfields Road.
Parts of this existing road will be stopped-up and incorporated into the proposed
development highway network. All existing properties on the Perryfields Road will
maintain full and direct access to local the highway network. The timing and
coordination of works to the public highway is subject to separate permissions/
agreements in accordance with the New Roads and Streetworks Act and Highways
Act. The strategy for the coordination of the severance of Perryfields Road is also
subject to a planning condition secured as part of the original outline consent (16/0335

Page 8



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

allowed at appeal under reference APP/ P1805/W/20/3265948 condition 35). The timing
and strategy for these works will be reviewed as part of any proposed Discharge of
Condition application in pursuance of condition 35.

Tying into the consented active travel corridor secured on the spine road as part

of Phase 1 development, there will be a continuation of this facility which will direct
cyclists onto the Old Perryfields Road providing active travel with a low trafficked and
quiet route with direct and convenient access through the development. This will also
provide active travel connections to the proposed employment areas.

The levels of parking proposed align with the adopted Streetscape Design Guide and
all parking is contained within the curtilage of plots/ properties.

A Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been undertaken and a supporting Designer's Response
(DR) has been submitted. Worcestershire County Council, as the Overseeing
Organisation, accepts the findings of the RSA and the DR.

Across the site, a network of footpath connections are proposed within the public open
space. The Applicant should note that Worcestershire County Council will not adopt
footpaths/ links shown in the areas of public open space.

Mott MacDonald

Active Travel Accessibility

Initially raised the need to consider the opportunity for an active travel access point to be
brought forward in the north-east of the site to facilitate east-west connections for the
northern half of the site. Across both the Outline Application and Reserved Matters
application there appeared to be uncertainty whether there was an opportunity to provide
a potential active travel access points either to Larchmere Drive or Grayshott Close to
address this need.

Noted in the revised plans that overall accessibility strategy is now clearer. The role of the
Perryfields Road route as a key north-south active travel spine is emphasised but
consider that there is a missed opportunity for linkages to either Larchmere Drive,
Grayshott Close, or The Orchards School.

Site layout and Highways
Potential conflicts at junctions were initially raised, however, these have now been
addressed in revised plans submitted.

Public Transport
Initial queries referred to the location of bus stops. Although details have been provided in
terms of locations, would query the precise form of the bus stop facilities.

Phasing of the Spine Road
Previously requested clearer narrative in respect to the planned stopping up of Perryfields
Road and it is noted that condition 35 of the Outline Permission would be applicable.

The planning for delivery of highway works is necessarily interrelated with the detailed

design and construction planning stages of delivery. Therefore, it is reasonable to control
these measures via a planning condition. Nonetheless it is unlikely that a significant

Page 9



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

guantum of development could come forward for delivery or occupation prior to resolution
of the phasing strategy as the overall transport strategy is reliant on delivery of the public
transport and active travel facilities which should be in place at the earliest opportunity

to support the needs of the new residents.

To summarise, initial issues raised have been addressed, it is recommended that
additional conditions be imposed in respect to the delivery of bus stop infrastructure and
control the phasing of the Perryfields Road works. In addition, more consideration be
given to an additional active travel connection to either Larchmere Drive or Grayshott
Close to support accessibility of the site by sustainable means.

National Highways
No objection

Active Travel England (ATE)
ATE has undertaken a detailed assessment of this application and is content with the
submission.

County Public Rights of Way (PRoW)

We acknowledge the new ‘PRoW Route Plan’ and the applicant’s intent to divert the
footpath. We have also been contacted by Bromsgrove District Council who have
received a request to formally divert the footpath. We note, and fully support, the intent to
include the full length of the diverted footpath within the Section 38 highway adoption
scheme.

Request a condition that the Public Path Diversion Order is at Confirmed Order stage
prior to construction of the development.

Rambler’s Association

The Rambler’'s Association is very concerned about this proposal. It is replacing a public
right of way footpath through a field path with a suburban road, albeit not a through road,
and diverting the route to one of a much lower amenity value after an expected lengthy
closure and would not ‘protect and enhance’ the path network.

The provision of new routes (though not Public Rights of Way - we would appreciate
clarity on this with its implications for future maintenance) within the overall scheme is
cited as a compensating measure of enhancement. But the closure of the footpath would
be enacted as soon as possible and is now being drafted. We have no suggestion of a
timescale for this compensatory action. And there is no consideration of any temporary
diversion.

In essence we believe that path 591 will be lost as a part of the beneficial PROW
network.

On these grounds the Ramblers Association will also be entering an objection to the path
diversion order which we understand to be in preparation.

Natural England
No comments to make on this reserved matters application.

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

National Grid
There are no National Grid Electricity Transmission assets affected in this area.

Environment Agency
Notes that the site sits entirely within Flood Zone 1 (the low risk zone) on the Flood Map
for Planning and refers to conditions under the outline approval.

North Worcestershire Water Management

This site falls within flood zone 1 (low risk of fluvial flooding) and is not generally
susceptible to surface water flooding aside from some areas of flood risk along the
corridor of the Willow Brook through the centre of the site. We do not hold any reports of
flooding within the site (which as non-developed land is to be expected), but we do hold
reports of flooding in several locations immediately adjacent to the site. It is therefore
important that the rate and volume of surface water from the developed site does not
exceed the greenfield values, and that the drainage is carefully designed which may help
to reduce this existing flood risk.

In respect to the Willow Brook; this rises adjacent to Perryfields Road and flows through
the site, possibly partially culverted, towards Grayshott Close / Larchmere Drive. Policy
23(g) of the Bromsgrove Local Plan requires that opportunities for watercourse
enhancement though de-culverting should be maximised; the proposals incorporate this
watercourse through the public open space.

Following on from discussions, a preliminary drainage strategy has been submitted
including the drainage network that will be publicly adopted and includes two swales and
two attenuation ponds. At present it does not appear that there is any permanent depth of
water in either pond which will need to be included as part of the detailed design along
with section drawings of the pond, which are covered by the existing conditions on the
outline application.

Having discussed drainage for the site with the applicant, | understand that due to the
underlying ground conditions individual soakaways are not feasible on site. We discussed
the inclusion of rain gardens, bioretention areas and porous paving across the wider site;
although not included on the preliminary drainage strategy; nevertheless these can be
covered by the existing conditions for the site. | am pleased to see that some areas of the
site will drain into the sections of swales, and that the culverts previously included have
now been removed from the swale design.

Provisional information has been provided which is generally satisfactory, and while
further information is still required before any building work commences on site, | believe
this is covered by the existing conditions for the 2016 planning, | therefore am content for
the remaining information to be dealt with via these conditions.

Severn Trent Water Ltd
No Comments

WRS - Contaminated Land

As requested Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) have reviewed the application
in relation to contaminated land. No information relating to contaminated land matters has
been identified from the available documentation. It is understood that relevant conditions

Page 11



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

were attached to the outline planning permission (16/0335) following the granting of
permission on appeal. WRS are not aware of any relevant information being submitted in
respect of contaminated land in relation to the Phase 2, therefore, condition 13 —
Contamination land remains to be discharged for this phase.

WRS - Noise

| have reviewed the documents submitted for the above and have not identified any
nuisance issues requiring comment. Condition 17 of the appeal decision relates to an
acoustic bund and Condition 26 to attenuation measures for noise from roads. Details
need to be submitted to discharge these conditions for Phase 2.

WRS - Air Quality
No objection

Urban Designer - Place Services
Supportive on urban design grounds.

Ecology Advisor - ECUS Ltd

Following our review of the Habitat Management Plan and Badger Sett Monitoring Report
we are satisfied that the documents meet the requirements for Condition 8 of the outline
planning permission.

Worcestershire Archive and Archaeological Service
No archaeological objection

Waste Management

| have reviewed the application which we were already aware of as part of the wider
development of the Perryfields site, and all looks acceptable from a waste collection
perspective.

Community Safety Manager
| recommend that the developer considers application for Secured by Design Gold or
Silver Award in respect of the development.

This is a large site and there is substantial permeability, a certain amount of this is
obviously desirable and necessary in order that on such a large site there is appropriate
access and movement, particularly as here where there are impacts upon the existing
road infrastructure.

| note this proposal includes back-to-back blocks, this is a positive design in crime
prevention terms provided there is adequate protection of rear garden accesses by good
guality fencing and gate locks. Other blocks with a parking court behind a frontage are
proposed, good natural surveillance over parking areas and well-designed lighting is
important in such cases.

| note there are a number of units where the parking is tandem between units, this can
create vulnerabilities to vehicle crime and facilitate access to rear areas. This should be
mitigated by ensuring good natural surveillance from opposite properties and active
rooms overlooking these areas.

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

Planted areas should be designed to be maintained to a level that ensures natural
surveillance and where possible defensive planting should be used to enhance fencing
protection to enclosed areas, this also prevents graffiti.

Arboricultural Officer

The proposed landscape scheme as shown contains a wide range of planting that will
provide a suitable level of seasonal interest and habitat value to the site. The volume of
planting and grade of the stock to be used will provide a good level of structure to the
landscaping of the site from the outset of the planting and in the longer term.

Housing Strategy

We are happy with the pepper-potting and clustering. The property sizes all comply with
the required HQI standards. | can confirm that this planning application meets the
requirements of the Section 106 in respect of the provision of social rented and shared
ownership units and am happy to support it.

Open Space/Play Areas

Recommend minor amendments to the design/layout of the LEAP otherwise provision will
complement other facilities within the local area at Sanders Park, King George Close and
the new play area to be built at Whitford Heights development.

No objection to the open space areas.

Sport England
No comments to make on proposal.

Education Department at Worcestershire County Council
No comments.

The Bromsgrove Society

e Existing PROW to Carol Avenue. Request that the route be improved between the
Perryfields site boundary and Carol Avenue to maximise its use for all active travel
mode.

Pedestrian access link to Larchmere Drive, as suggested in the Movement Plan.
Pedestrian access link to Grayshott Close- school link.

Concern regarding private garden lengths and garden areas.

Query procedures to close Perryfields Road.

Bromsgrove Climate Action
e Request the provision of swift bricks to provide habitat loss for swifts.

Publicity
Three public consultations have taken place as follows:-

144 neighbour letters sent on:

20 March 2024 (expire 13 April 2024)

2 July 2024 (expire 26 July 2024)

14 October 2024 (expire 7 November 2024)

Site notices displayed:

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

27 March 2024 (expire 20 April 2024)
15 July 2024 (expire 8 August 2024)
21 October 2024 (expire 14 November 2024)

Press notice published:

22 March 2024 (expire 8 April 2024)

5 July 2024 (expire 22 July 2024)

18 October 2024 (expire 4 November 2024)

15 public representations received raising the following issues:
e The area represents last large area of green lung in the area for local residents
Ruin my outlook
Council should look at other Brownfields sites for development
Development should be spread out more equally around the District
Impact on flora and fauna
Overspill from Birmingham, how will occupiers get back to Birmingham to work etc
Rat-run
Road infrastructure issues/traffic
Closure of Perryfields Road, it is current direct route at present, but | am pleased
that the end of my road is being closed as the road is busy with risky crossroads
and often used as a racetrack at night
e Number of houses being built will be crammed leaving little room for trees and
decent space for gardens
Sound barriers and general noise
Footpath diversion
Sewage connections for existing occupiers
Comments relating to the potential light industrial areas
Footpath provision as a result of road re-alignment

Other matters have been raised but these are not material to the determination of the
application and have not been reported.

Site Description

The Perryfields Road development site (allocated as BROM2 in the Bromsgrove District
Plan) is located to the south of the intersection between the M5 and the M42 and
amounts to 72.26 hectares in area, extending between the A448 Kidderminster Road to
the south, the B4091 Stourbridge Road to the north-east, and bounded by the residential
area of Sidemoor to the south-east.

The development of the allocated BROM2 site will be in the form of 5 Phases. This
application is Phase 2 (site area 22.22 hectares) and is located at the most southern tip
of the overall site bounded by Kidderminster Road, The Orchards School, the M5
motorway, and backs on to the rear of properties of Larchmere Drive, Carol Avenue and
Mercer Close.

Proposal Description
Following the granting of outline planning permission at appeal and the approval of
external access arrangements by the Planning Inspector, this application seeks consent

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

for the second phase of this allocated site for the erection of 437 dwellings. Members will
be aware that phase one is currently under construction off Stourbridge Road.

The principle of the residential development (up to 1300 units) has been established
through the granting of a mixed use outline permission 16/0335 which also included up to
200 unit extra care facility, up to 5ha of employment, mixed use local centre with retalil
and community facilities, first school, open space, recreational areas and sports pitches,
associated services and infrastructure.

The Reserved Matters to be considered under this application are:

* Layout - the way in which buildings, routes and open spaces within the development are
provided, situated, and orientated in relation to each other and to buildings and spaces
outside the development. This includes the internal road configuration.

* Scale - the height, width and length of each building proposed within the development in
relation to its surroundings;

» Appearance - the aspects of a building or place within the development which
determines the visual impression the building or place makes, including the external built
form of the development, its architecture, materials, decoration, lighting, colour, and
texture; and

» Landscaping - the treatment of land (other than buildings) for the purpose of enhancing
or protecting the amenities of the site and the area in which it is situated and includes—

* screening by fences, walls or other means;

« the planting of trees, hedges, shrubs or grass;

* the formation of banks, terraces or other earthworks;

« the laying out or provision of gardens, courts, squares, water features,

* sculpture or public art; and

* the provision of other amenity features

For clarity, the issue of external access (provision of a roundabout) off Kidderminster
Road has already been determined and approved, so is not for consideration in the
current application. In addition, the stopping up of Perryfields Road off Kidderminster
Road has already been considered at the outline stage and approved in principle and its
severance is clearly indicated within the suite of approved plans — Access and Movement
Parameters Plan and conditioned accordingly.

A total of 437 dwellings of varying housetypes are proposed in this phase generally
comprising of 2 storey dwellings, however, 8 No. bungalows are proposed, and 35 No.
dwellings would be 2.5 storeys. 39 apartments would be provided in the form of three
separate 3 storey apartment blocks.

The provision of dwellings is as follows:
Open market housing

21 No. 2 bedroom apartments

2 No. 2 bedroom bungalows

31 No. 2 bedroom dwellings

182 No. 3 bedroom dwellings

67 No. 4 bedroom dwellings

Total 303 dwellings

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

Affordable housing

12 No. 1 bedroom apartments
6 No. 2 bedroom apartments
6 No. 2 bedroom bungalows
57 No. 2 bedroom dwellings
47 No. 3 bedroom dwellings

6 No. 4 bedroom dwellings
Total 134 dwellings

The Phase 2 scheme proposes a total of 134 affordable units which is slightly more than
the 30% requirement as it includes 3 additional affordable dwellings to make up for the
identified shortfall approved under Phase 1 Ref: 23/00869/REM. The affordable housing
tenure is split between shared ownership (54 units) and affordable social rent (80 units).
This tenure split equates to 40% shared ownership and 60% affordable social rent in
accordance with the requirements set out in the S106 Agreement attached to the Outline
permission. The affordable housing would be provided in clusters across the whole of the
phased scheme.

This phase shows the spine route corridor heading north and includes the provision of a
roundabout that would provide access to light industrial areas (the light industrial
development is not for consideration under this application). A small roundabout is also
included within the layout of the scheme to serve the residential development.

This application includes the stopping up of Perryfields Road in three locations. However,
the stopping up of this road enables enhanced quality cycle/pedestrian facilities that will
encourage easy access for cycling and walking opportunities and ensure less reliance on
the car. Members should be aware that the principle of stopping up Perryfields Road has
already been factored into the decision-making of the Outline appeal and has been
conditioned accordingly within that decision (condition 35). Footpath and cycle links have
been provided within the scheme and incorporated as important direct pedestrian/cycle
routes within the overall development.

Provision of informal public open space would be in the form of a multi-functional green
infrastructure areas including play facilities that are provided as a network of connected
corridors for pedestrians and cyclists. The open space area will comprise of series of
earth mounds (2 metres in height overall) and substantial tree planting particularly along
the boundary of the M5 motorway which will enhance the open space facilities but also
add as noise mitigation.

A linear swale drainage system and attenuation area with two ponds would be provided
to the west of the site. Informal leisure footpaths are proposed within these areas.

A small LEAP (Local Equipment Area for Play) play area facility is also proposed next to
Perryfields Road where it is proposed to be stopped up. All open space areas will be
planted with a variety of appropriate plant species.

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP2 Settlement Hierarchy

Page 16



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

BDP3 Future Housing and Employment Development
BDP5A Bromsgrove Town Expansion Sites
BDP7 Housing Mix and Density

BDP8 Affordable Housing

BDP10 Homes for the Elderly

BDP12 Sustainable Communities

BDP16 Sustainable Transport

BDP19 High Quality Design

BDP21 Natural Environment

BDP23 Water Management

BDP24 Green Infrastructure

BDP25 Health and Well Being

Others

National Planning Policy Framework (2024)
National Planning Practice Guidance
Bromsgrove High Quality Design SPD
National Design Guide

Relevant Planning History

The application site forms part of a larger site that was the subject of a planning appeal
(APP/P1805/W/20/3265948). The appeal was allowed 5 August 2021 granting outline
planning permission for and approving access for:

The phased development of up to 1300 dwellings (C3); up to 200 unit extra care facility
(C2/C3); up to 5ha of employment (B1); mixed use local centre with retail and community
facilities (A1, A2, A3, A4, A5, D1); First School; open space; recreational areas and
sports pitches; associated services and infrastructure (including sustainable drainage,
acoustic barrier); with matters of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (including
internal roads) being indicative and reserved for future consideration, except for details of
the means of access to the site from both Kidderminster and Stourbridge Road, with
associated highway works (including altered junctions at Perryfields Road/Kidderminster
Road and Perryfields Road/Stourbridge Road) submitted for consideration at outline
stage.

The Planning Inspector considered and allowed the Reserved Matter of access. This
included consideration of traffic movement and highway safety together with a proposed
mitigation package and approved 2 vehicular access points into the site from Stourbridge
Road and Kidderminster Road.

The appeal was allowed subject to a Section 106 Agreement that secured a number of
contributions and mitigation measures. Condition requirements to be addressed prior to
commencement of any phase include the following:

Condition 1 details of the access, appearance, landscaping and scale in that phase to
be submitted and approved.

Condition 4 development to be carried out in accordance with approved plans which
included detailed vehicular access plans off Kidderminster Road and parameter plans
that provided indicative details in respect to access and movement, open space and
green infrastructure, development heights, noise mitigation and drainage.

Page 17



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

Condition 6 requires a Design Code.

Condition 8 requires a Habitat Management Plan.

Condition 9/10requires a programme of archaeological work.

Condition 11 requires a Construction Environmental Management Plan.
Condition 12 requires drainage details.

Condition 13 requires a preliminary risk assessment in respect to contamination.
Condition 14 requires protection of all trees and hedges to be retained.
Condition 17 requires acoustic barrier details.

Condition 18 requires finished ground floor levels.

Condition 19 requires refuse details for apartments.

Condition 20 requires the submission of soft landscaping works.

Condition 21 requires the submission of hard landscaping works.

Condition 22 requires details of boundary treatment.

Condition 23 requires a landscape management plan.

Condition 24 requires details of communal public open space.

Condition 25 requires details for the Local Equipped Area of Play (LEAP).
Condition 26 requires details of noise levels within dwellings.

Condition 27 requires technical details of any earth bund and noise attenuation structures
adjacent to M5 and M42 motorways.

Condition 30 requires details of external lighting.

Condition 31 Travel plan.

Condition 35 requires details of strategy and timescale for the severance of Perryfields
Road.

Condition 36 requires details of water efficiency.

Condition 37 Finished road levels.

Planning application 23/00869/REM was submitted for 149 residential units on land
abutting Stourbridge Road/Perryfields Road for Phase 1 of the overall development. This
application was considered at Planning Committee on 6 November 203 and was
approved on 10" November 2023.

Details required to address conditions 8, 19, 20, 21, 22, 24, and 25 form part of this
application in respect to Phase 2 only whilst the other conditions are being considered as
part of separate Discharge of Conditions application submissions.

Assessment of Proposal

Phasing

As considered under the Phase 1 application, this proposal will be the second of
potentially five phases to complete the Perryfields development. In determining the
appeal, the Inspector anticipated development taking place on a phased basis and this is
reflected in the wording of many of the conditions. A phasing plan has been approved as
part of the discharge of conditions. Therefore, the submission of a Reserved Matters
application for only part of the overall site is acceptable.

Layout
The outline planning permission was allowed on appeal subject to a condition that the

Reserved Matters shall be in accordance with the indicative development area parameter

Page 18



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

plans. The plans approved as part of the Outline application include detailed plans for the
access arrangements/improvements for Stourbridge Road, Kidderminster Road and other
nearby roads indicated for highway improvements.

The approved plans also included parameter plans that showed indicative details of the
access and movement of the potential development. The Access and Movement Plan
showed a ‘main movement route corridor’.

The layout of the scheme has been defined by the main route corridor. This phase also
includes the stopping up of Perryfields Road to enable the main route corridor to become
the formal route into this strategic site. Members will recall that as part of the Outline
decision, Perryfields Road would be severed in places to enable the development.
Approximate locations of these severances are annotated on the approved Access and
Movement Plan.

In respect to this phase the changes to Perryfields Road are as follows:
e T-junction of Perryfields Road and Kidderminster Road

e Perryfields Road south of The Orchards School

e Perryfields Road adjacent to Red Cross Farm

Perryfields Road will be stopped up in these locations with a cul-de-sac, however, the
stopped up road will form an enhanced pedestrian/cyclist route that will link to a variety of
connectivity routes through this strategic site and the surrounding area.

Members will be aware that a roundabout was approved at Outline stage to be provided
in this location off Kidderminster Road. The proposed layout includes an L-shaped 3
storey apartment building that would face the roundabout providing a prominent landmark
building for the site. To the north-west of the new main route corridor (primary road), 2
No. similarly designed 3 storey apartment buildings would also be provided to enhance
the landmark building. In addition to this 2.5 storey dwellings are also proposed to be
interspersed along some of the secondary streets to aid wayfinding and interest to the
streetscene.

The layout of the scheme comprises of three distinct character areas — Street, Mews and
Edge, each character area has its own appearance and identity. A similar approach was
applied to the Phase 1 scheme. The provision of the character areas enables 60
variations of housetypes in the form of detached, semi-detached and terraced properties.
The combination of the different housetypes, variety of material finishes, and detailing
that is unigue to each character areas will aid placemaking and wayfinding and ensure a
varied streetscene within the site. The distribution of social rent and shared ownership
properties is proposed to be in a diverse and reasonable manner.

Generally, there is a sense of spaciousness within the proposed housing layout. Whilst
many of the plots have private rear garden areas and garden lengths in excess of the
spacing standards set out in the Council’s High Quality Design SPD for private amenity
space, some are substandard. Some may achieve the garden area of approximately 70
sgm, or they achieve the required 10.5 garden length. There are some plots that do not
achieve either requirement with the lowest garden area being provided as approximately
38 sgm. However, these plots are minimal when taking the development as a whole and
generally relate to 2-bedroom terraced dwellings where it is often difficult to achieve a

Page 19



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

minimum garden area for such plots. In addition, it is important to consider the overall
proposal holistically taking into consideration the provision of open space facilities that
will be available within the scheme. In this context, the slight shortfall in garden
lengths/areas is not considered to be significantly harmful. Furthermore, the Council does
not have a 5 year supply of housing land currently. Given the physical constraints of this
site, the provision of open space proposed for this phase, and the overall benefits
associated with the provision of 437 new dwellings, including 134 affordable units, the
proposal is considered acceptable.

The major urban design criteria is connectivity. Generally, the layout relates well on this
criterion, for pedestrians, cyclists, and vehicles.

An existing Public Right of Way (PRoW) (footpath No. BM 591) diagonally crosses the
field from Perryfields Road, south of Red Cross Farm and links into Carol Avenue. The
layout of the scheme indicates that the footpath will be diverted and incorporated within
the layout of scheme. The Ramblers Association (RA) have expressed concern regarding
the quality of the alternative route as the footpath will change from a rural footpath to a
tarmac provision. Whilst it is noted that the RA have concerns about the proposed
footpath diversion; in the long term the proposed development will enable safer links to
other PRoW off Perryfields Road and the surrounding area. The scheme also provides
additional landscaping for the diverted route in order enhance this proposed footpath
diversion. County Public Rights of Way have commented on the scheme and also
acknowledge that an application to divert the footpath has been submitted. The County
Public Rights of Way Officer notes and fully supports the intention to include the full
length of the diverted footpath within the Section 38 highway adoption scheme. Whilst
they do not object to the diversion they do recommend that a condition be imposed to
ensure that the Public Path Diversion Order is at Confirmed Order stage before
commencement of development on the current route.

Permeability directly to The Orchards School was considered to be convoluted given that
pedestrian access/drop off area to the school has been designed towards the rear of the
school via Grayshott Close. Members will note that Mott MacDonald made reference for

some form of pedestrian link to Grayshott Close.

A footpath link from the site to the drop off area of the School has been negotiated.
Details of the full provision of the footpath/gate and landscaping details can be
conditioned. This link will encourage occupiers to walk their children to the school site
without the need to use the car. The provision of the link will require the removal of some
hedgerow, however, its removal will be limited given that only a pedestrian gate is
required to be provided. The developer has agreed to this provision, and the school
supports this provision too.

Overall, the proposed layout is considered to accord with policies BDP5A.7g), BDP19,
Bromsgrove High Quality Design SPD and the NPPF.

Scale
As considered under the phase 1 application, Condition 4 requires that the Reserved

Matters accord with the maximum scale parameters for buildings as set out Figure 3.2
Parameter Plan — Development Heights. The plan shows that this aspect of the

Page 20



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

strategic site could potentially accommodate 2.5 storey dwellings with a 3-storey element
adjacent to the roundabout.

As mentioned above there is a landmark/gateway feature in the form of a 3-storey
apartment building at the entrance of the site, and although there are 35 No. 2.5 storey
height dwellings interspersed within the layout of the site, the majority of the built form
will be 2 storeys. Given the variety of levels of the site, the general height of
surrounding properties, it is considered appropriate that 2 storey units be the dominant
height for this phase.

A total of 8 No. bungalows are also proposed providing a variety of roof heights as well as
an interesting streetscene, but also provides for those who benefit from ground floor only
living.

Overall, the scale of the development is considered acceptable.
Appearance

60 varied housetypes form part of this phased scheme. The scheme reflects similar
architectural details from neighbouring properties in the area. The housetypes provide
visual interest to the streetscene ensuring that this development integrates into its setting
in accordance with Policy BDP19, and the Council’s SPD on High Quality Design.

A limited materials palette is proposed featuring varying shades of red brickwork, render
and cladding for the units encouraging distinctiveness and wayfinding throughout the site.
The same materials palette will be used on both market and affordable housing to ensure
that the development is well integrated and tenure blind. Roads, footways and driveways
are generally intended to be a tarmac finish.

Boundary treatment details have also been submitted which show a combination of brick
screen walling and timber fencing of varying heights. The Council’s Urban Designer is
supportive on urban design grounds in terms of the applicant’s strategy to approach
building heights by tying it to street hierarchy. Reference was made to the architectural
design of the apartment buildings with a recommendation that they be improved visually
to make them visually distinct. Amended plans submitted has addressed this matter with
the provision of more detailing provided on all external elevations of the apartment
buildings.

The size, appearance and architectural detailing of the apartment buildings and dwellings
are acceptable. As such the scheme accords with policies BDP5A7.g), BDP19 of the
District Plan, the Council’s High Quality Design SPD, the outline planning permission, and
the NPPF.

Landscaping
Some established trees and hedgerows will need to be removed to enable the
development, however, the provision of open space will be enhanced with a wide range

of new planting that will provide a suitable level of seasonal interest and habitat value to
the site. The volume of planting and grade of the stock to be used will provide a good

Page 21



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

level of structure to the landscaping of the site from the outset. There will also be
biodiversity benefits too with the swale drainage system and attenuation area.

Overall, it is considered that this proposal satisfactorily achieves the aims of the Open
Space and Green Infrastructure Parameters Plan defined in the approved Outline
application and Development Plan policy.

Housing Mix
Policy BDP5A of the District Plan requires a high proportion of 2 and 3 bedroom

properties across the town expansion sites. The mix for this development is set out
below:

12 No. 1 bedroom units 2.7%
123 No. 2 bedroom units 28%
229 No. 3 bedroom units 52.2%
73 No. 4 bedroom units 16.6%

80% of the proposed dwellings would be 2-3 bedroom units. There is a requirement for
40% affordable housing across the whole allocation in accordance with Policy BDP5A.7
and BDP8. In the appeal decision the Inspector acknowledged that the outline scheme
would provide for 30% affordable provision across the expected 1300 new dwellings as
the existing 210 affordable units already constructed on the allocated site would go
towards the 40% affordable housing requirement.

The Phase 2 scheme proposes a total of 134 affordable units which is slightly more than
the 30% requirement as it includes 3 additional affordable dwellings to make up for the
identified shortfall approved under Phase 1 Ref: 23/00869/REM.

Policy BDP8.6 states that where a development site is brought forward on a piecemeal
basis, the Council will assess affordable housing targets for each part of the site on a pro-
rata basis, having regard to the overall requirements generated by the whole site.
Members may recall that there was a shortfall of affordable housing on Phase 1 by 3
dwellings. The developers clarified at that time, that the shortfall would be made up in the
next phase. Accordingly, the shortfall of 3 dwellings has been provided in this phased
proposal. Officers accept this approach in respect to the affordable housing provision for
this phase and consider that the proposed development meets the development policies
in respect of affordable housing requirements.

The affordable housing tenure is proposed to be split between shared ownership (54
units) and affordable social rent (80 units). This tenure split equates to 40% shared
ownership and 60% affordable social rent and would be in accordance with the
requirements set out in the S106 Agreement attached to the Outline permission. This
provision would be provided in clusters across the whole of the phased scheme including
2 apartment blocks that would front the main route corridor. In addition, there is a
provision of 6 No. affordable social rent bungalows, which is welcomed and supports
Policy BDP5A which seeks to secure a variety of housetypes to suit different sectors of
the population.

Page 22



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

The Housing Officer has confirmed that the pepper-potting and clustering of the
affordable housing provision is acceptable.

Impact on Existing and Proposed Residential Amenities

Adequate spacing would be maintained between existing and proposed dwellings.
Overall, it is considered that given the degree of separation, position and orientation
between proposed dwellings and neighbouring properties along Kidderminster Road,
Mercer Close, Carol Avenue and Larchmere, the proposal would not result in harm to the
amenity of the occupants of neighbouring properties or future occupiers of the proposed
dwellings and is considered acceptable.

Highway Matters

The section of the spine road relevant to this planning application has been designed
in accordance with the principles established as part of the outline planning consent

set by the Planning Inspectorate and as part of the consented Phase 1 development
in a consistent and coherent manner.

To achieve these established principles, a 6.7m wide road has been provided where
development serves the proposed commercial/ employment uses in accordance with
the adopted Streetscape Design Guide which then becomes a 6.1m wide road. There
is localised widening at bends along the spine road which is necessary to safely
accommodate two-way traffic based on vehicle tracking data. The required 20mph
design speed has been achieved through appropriate horizontal alignment.

All proposed footways adjacent to properties are 2m wide. The proposed turning heads
are designed in accordance with the Streetscape Design Guide and there are 1m
service margins provided at the back of all turning heads where there is no direct
frontage.

Parts of the Phase 2 development area impacts upon the existing Perryfields Road.
Parts of this existing road will be stopped-up and incorporated into the proposed
development highway network. All existing properties on the Perryfields Road will
maintain full and direct access to local the highway network. The timing and
coordination of works to the public highway is subject to separate permissions/
agreements in accordance with the New Roads and Streetworks Act and Highways
Act. The strategy for the coordination of the severance of Perryfields Road is also
subject to a planning condition secured as part of the original outline consent (16/0335
allowed at appeal under reference APP/ P1805/W/20/3265948 condition 35).

The timing and strategy for these works will be reviewed as part of any proposed
Discharge of Condition application in pursuance of condition 35.

There will be a continuation of this facility which will direct cyclists onto the Old Perryfields
Road providing active travel with a low trafficked and quiet route with direct and
convenient access through the development. This will continue the consented active
travel corridor secured on the spine road as part of the Phase 1 development. This will
also provide active travel connections to the proposed employment areas.

Page 23



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

A Road Safety Audit (RSA) has been undertaken and a supporting Designer's Response
(DR) has been submitted. Worcestershire County Council has accepted the findings of
the RSA and the DR.

The Highway Authority has undertaken a robust assessment of the application. Based
on analysis of the information provided, the Highway Authority advises no objection
subject to planning conditions. Mott MacDonald have considered the revised details and
generally support the proposal; they recommend the need for a condition in respect to
details of bus stop facilities, and timing of the closure of Perryfields Road. However,
monies have been secured within the S106 Agreement of the original outline consent
16/0335 for new bus stop infrastructure and this provision will be subject to separate
permissions/agreements in accordance with the New Roads and Streetworks Act and
Highways Act. In respect to the closure of Perryfields Road, it is considered that
condition 35 of the original outline consent 16/0335 is sufficient to address the timing of
its closure.

Active Travel England have also undertaken a detailed assessment of this application
and raise no objection to the scheme.

Ecology

A Habitat Management Plan and a Badger Sett Monitoring Report Water Vole Protection
Plan have been submitted to address conditions 8. These are considered acceptable to
the Council’s Consultant Ecologist.

Contamination

Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) reviewed the information submitted with
regard to contamination and risk to human health. Initial comments from WRS considered
that whilst the site is unlikely to be significantly contaminated, additional information is still
required and as such a tiered contamination condition in the outline decision will remain
live for now in respect to this phase.

Drainage

North Worcestershire Water Management (NWWM) have considered drainage details
submitted and overall support the proposal. Additional information is required; however,
these details can be discharged appropriately via the relevant outline conditions.

Conclusion

This is an allocated development site. Outline planning permission with the Reserved
Matter of Access was allowed on appeal in 2021. Whilst some of the private rear gardens
are less than the spacing standard set out in the High Quality Design SPD, when
assessed holistically against the policies of the District Plan the proposal is considered to
comply.

The Reserved Matters under consideration are found to comply with the relevant
conditions imposed by the Planning Inspector and to the NPPF.

Page 24



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

In the planning balance and taking account of material planning considerations, the
development as a whole is considered to be acceptable and subject to the conditions set
out below, is recommended for approval.

RECOMMENDATION:

Q) MINDED to APPROVE Reserved Matters

(2) That DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Assistant Director for Planning,
Leisure and Cultural Services to agree the final scope and detailed wording and
numbering of conditions as set out in the list at the end of this report.

Conditions:

1) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
plans and documents (drawing numbers to be inserted).

Reason: To provide certainty to the extent of the development hereby approved in
the interests of proper planning.

2) The Development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the layout,
turning areas and parking facilities shown in general accordance with Drawing
20046-3000-01 I have been provided. These areas shall thereafter be retained
and kept available for their respective approved uses at all times.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to ensure the free flow of traffic
using the adjoining highway.

3) The Development hereby approved shall not be occupied until the visibility
splays shown on Drawing 20046-3000-01 | have been provided. The splays shall
at all times be maintained free of level obstruction exceeding a height of 0.6m
above the adjacent carriageway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

4) The development shall not be occupied until full details of the provision of the
walking/cycling link and associated gate from the site to The Orchard School shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
walking/cycling link and associated gate provision shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details before the first occupation of any one of the
dwellings hereby permitted.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to assist in the provision of
sustainable links.

5) Prior to the commencement of development upon the current legal line of the Right
of Way BM 591, a management scheme for the PRoW BM 591 during construction
shall be submitted and approved. The scheme shall include the Public Path
Diversion Order at a Confirmed Order stage, details of how the route will be
maintained/managed during construction and shall include details such as

Page 25



Agenda Iltem 5

Plan reference 24/00246/REM

surfacing and protection measures etc. The approved scheme shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In order to ensure that a suitable alternative route is provided to maintain
the provision of the right of way.

Case Officer: Sharron Williams Tel: 01527 534061 Ext 3372
Email: sharron.williams@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 26



24/00246/REM

Land At Kidderminster Road Bromsgrove

Reserved Matters Application for Phase 2: 437 residential units
(Class C3) on land abutting Kidderminster Road/Perryfields Road, in
accordance with the Outline Planning Permission for 1,300 dwellings

3 (application reference 16/0335) allowed at appeal under reference

° APP/ P1805/W/20/3265948. The Reserved Matters application seeks

~ consent in line with condition 1 for detailed matters of appearance,
landscaping, layout, and scale.

Recommendation: MINDED to APPROVE Reserved Matters and that
DELEGATED POWERS be granted to the Assistant Director for
Planning, Leisure and Cultural to agree the final scope and detailed
wording and numbering of conditions as set out in the report.

G wal| epuaby



Agenda Iltem 5

, = | /
M‘ [ ,,J - \\\L

///,/‘/ ﬁ‘ =
e T St f
=, T ,
—)

Site
Location
Plan

Page 28



6¢ obed

Site layout
plan

G wa)| epuaby



Legend
Movement
E Application Boundary (Including Foot / Cycle Path A Footpath Route to be Provided Between
Exact Route to be Agreed) A B D,EFG&H
Areas Excluded from Highway Connection Restricted i
- Boundary E - No Thveangh Access for Metor Viehicies F ;om:?nmmww
E jain Access Existing PROW to be Diverted g Footpath Route to be Provided Between
h B&C
Route & to be Provided
E (Subject to Alteration) E Existing PROW / Bridleway K Cydle K&LW
E Existing Highway Access E Busting Susrans Route (NCNS)
isti Existing Public Right of
E Existing Highway Retained o P Right of Way /
oy
N

Figure 3.6
Parameter plans \
Access and /

Movement -
(outline application plan)

0€ abed

For information purposes : /
for this presentation > .

Ir

¥

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda ltem 5

ECOLOGY CONSTRAINT

ty

[}
§s5 3 B8
- — oS = © o ._—m.ﬂ.
nWE..@R h&
= 22838 U
thmy m.w
- — n.“llwd (@] m o
) S99 9% % 0D
n " O ®5 O =
cohm_.vW
C scess g8
[=Y £ c E=S
D) 25 528 E &0
I
co /1111
=z
- B
RN
i
o =




Streetscenes

STREET SCENESE PO ROT Ew PLOT &l
m—r uroes O

LT e

i
Rl

PLOT e
(=T

PLOT T
Aresoes

G wa)| epuaby



ETREETSCENECL motw FLOT s PLOT the
Nows ARuaz AVCMNE FOMD AVONSIORD

MESTSCENED-D  TLARE i

e

w
w

Streetscenes

LOT ST

AYMIZOAZ W T-ERSTEAD BnCA T

O M

nat e MOY I
AVOMIOND  SuaELLY CNO

mno™ Me O™ e
UNGALOW

"o e Lo L
AVONAIOMD  AVON ORD

FuvoALon

GY CONSTRAINT

G wa)| epuaby



Street scenes




Ge abed

Sample of housetypes

T |
|
i |
: |
|
FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION
L P
—_— | — | —

UVINGDINNG | |

s BORODN2 g
! = Tt }
L _= Nl
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

G wa)| epuaby



o€ abed

IR

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE (RIGHT) ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE (LEFT) ELEVATION

G wa)| epuaby



, € abed

FRONT ELEVATION

Il
L]

XN
o A -
A %
ey k.
C i
S B
“ B
& S
7 o
“ e
575 B
7 SN
& R
ad SR
e N \\?:‘
B R
— S
3 E

SIDE ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

SIDE ELEVATION

G wa)| epuaby



8¢ abed

|
}
1

‘;l'( <
g \\\,\
e \
S
S
7
\ |
.:"A %
Py N
fas [=
i

B

4 \

A |

‘ ‘ ' |

[

SIDE ELEVATION FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION
-Af‘, * Chimney t
..L; ﬁ‘ [ | oo BEDROOM 2 i
Koo | ||| J N [

\ 2
S Sl
=1 E— .
.
BEDROCM 3 N 1 |
= =
‘Y T
GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

G wa)| epuaby



6€ abed

LIVING /DINING
[— 7
’.. > I

e WOC

=

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SIDE ELEVATION

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

2 3
i o
P
i LANDING
BATHROOM ‘
o
= A
: | O

REAR ELEVATION

G wa)| epuaby



0t obed

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

b=

[

SIDE ELEVATION

]
- |
|
‘ =
‘ |
i , ’
\ S i
BJN v |
= Y B
| =1 N |
E I~ e
Mo = T

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

REAR ELEVATION

-
|
J
-
-
e
o
o x ¥
s
B
L S
A
AN —
fr ; =
—I s

e L2 H

b | -

_—

“rf:ﬁ* ..... i
T CSH SO SeSl oS
]

1
| |
ol "
| ]

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

G wa)| epuaby



T obed

i

i

SIDE ELEVATION

-

FRONT ELEVATION

Tl
d

[
LR

|
| 1
|-
g
1§ .
=
{ 9
et
& i
N
N
» -

L

SIDE ELEVATION

* Chimney to pk
A-82
c-23

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda ltem 5

o 11
% : e :
Ny = w w
I Y ]k :
E g
: E

Page 42



N

FRONT ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION REAR ELEVATION

ey abed

FIRST FLOOR PLAN SIDE ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

G wa)| epuaby



v abed

l

I

KITCHENDINING

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

G wa)| epuaby



SIDE ELEVATION

FRONT ELEVATION

Page 45

Agenda ltem 5

e s e

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION



9t abed

FRONT ELEVATION

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

s
——

SIDE ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION

G wa)| epuaby



the roundabout

L shaped apartment building next to

Page 47

Agenda Iltem 5




T

ELEVATION C

Page 48

Agenda Iltem 5

-y
Perryfields Ph2

Rromenrove

¥
35
EFE
3 4

ELEVATION D




61 obed

Apartment buildings along main route
corridor

HW
] I

G wa)| epuaby



Agenda Item 5

.w,.“,,hﬂ,.u
| |
|

L

Avxdatie

LB
Perryfields Ph2
Bromsgrove

mm s y

ELEVATION E

o
&
=
@
@

ELEVATION B

Page 50



Agenda Iltem 6

Name of Applicant Proposal Determination Date Plan Ref.
Mr Andy Single storey rear extension to provide 28.01.2025 24/01218/FUL
Godwin larger kitchen/dining/family area.

477 Birmingham Road
Marlbrook
Worcestershire

B61 OHZ

This application is being reported to the Planning Committee for consideration
because the applicant is a Redditch Borough Council employee.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED
Consultations

Catshill and North Marlbrook Parish Council
No comments received to date

Publicity
2 letters sent 5 December 2024 (expired 29 December 2024)
No responses received

Relevant Policies

Bromsgrove District Plan

BDP1 Sustainable Development Principles
BDP19 High Quality Design

Catshill and North Marlbrook Neighbourhood Plan
Others

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework (2024)
Bromsgrove High Quality Design SPD

Relevant Planning History

No Relevant Planning History

Page 51



Agenda Iltem 6

Site Description

This section of Birmingham Road consists of a mix of detached properties and semi-
detached properties. The application site is a semi-detached dwelling with a single
garage facing Birmingham Road. A workshop currently exists at the rear of the house.
The front and side of the property can be seen within the street scene as the property is
directly facing the pavement and road.

Proposal Description

The proposal involves the removal of an existing rear workshop and side-garage, to be
replaced by a single storey extension to the side and rear of the property to provide a
larger kitchen/dining/familyarea, in addition to a W.C. and utility room.

The proposed extension will project 3 metres from the rear of the dwelling. The
proposed extension will project 1.8 metres to the side of the dwelling. The height of the
extension is 3 metres.

The extension will have a flat roof and will include bi-folding doors on the extended rear
elevation, a window to serve the new kitchen and a pedestrian door on the side
elevation.

The materials used will match existing (UPVC double glazed windows/ UPVC double
glazed doors/rendered brick).

Assessment of Proposal

The site is located within a residential area where it is considered that the principle of
residential development is acceptable, subject to Policy BDP19 of the Bromsgrove
District Local Plan and guidance set out in the Bromsgrove High Quality Design SPD.

The proposed design of the extension is in keeping with the property and would not
detrimentally affect the residential amenity of neighbouring occupiers. The proposed
extension will have a significantly smaller footprint than the existing garage and
workshop which are to be demolished.

The proposal is considered to comply with both the National Planning Policy Framework
2024 and the Bromsgrove District Plan, specifically Policy BDP 1.4 e) which states that the
proposal should 'not result in any adverse harm to the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of
the nearby dwellings with regard to loss of light, outlook or privacy', and Policy BDP 19.1 e)
which states that the Council must ensure that the 'development enhances the character and
distinctiveness of the local area'. Additionally, the proposal complies with the High Quality
Design SPD with specific reference to Section 3.1.2. which states that 'developments should
ensure they protect and consider the impact on neighbouring amenity. The development
complies with the Catshill and North Marlbrook Neighbourhood Plan, specifically paragraph
8.7.1 with regards to high quality design, which states that developments in the Catshill and
North Marlbrook area ‘should be of good quality which helps retain the character of the
village'.

Therefore, the proposal is considered acceptable, complying with Policies BDP1 and
BDP19 of the District Plan, the Council’s SPD on High Quality Design, the Catshill and
North Marlbrook Neighbourhood Plan and the provisions of the NPPF (2024).

No third party representations have beerPrﬁQ@eE’@respect to the proposal. The views of
the Parish Council are currently awaited.



Agenda Iltem 6

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission be GRANTED
Conditions:

1) The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the
expiration of three years beginning with the date of the grant of this permission.

Reason: In accordance with the requirements of Section 91(1) of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

2) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans and drawings:

Proposed Elevations- Drawing Number- EL1- Dated 3" December 2024
Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Drawing Number- GF1- Dated 3@ December 2024
Roof Details- Drawing Number- RD1- Dated 3 December 2024

Foundation Details- Drawing Number- FD1- Dated 3@ December 2024

Proposed Block Plan- Dated 3@ December 2024

Site Location Plan- Dated 3™ December 2024

Reason: To provide certainty to the extent of the development hereby approved in the
interests of proper planning.

3) All new external walls and roofs shall be finished in materials to match in colour,
form and texture those on the existing building.

Reason: To ensure that the development is satisfactory in appearance, to safeguard
the visual amenities of the area

Case Officer: Kyle Lander
Tel: (01527) 881444 Extn. 1444
Email: kyle.lander@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



GG abed

24/01218/FUL

477 Birmingham Road, Malbrook, Bromsgrove
Single-story side and rear extension

Recommendation: GRANT planning permission subject to conditions

9 wa)| epuaby



Block Plan/ Location Plan

Agenda Item 6

. y - 4,]‘. - e ||~
u, — < L' = ’ \ » |
A \ N - -
=1 = -
1 1
/[ \ |
/ ‘ ' ) |
| - r
| =
¢ .\\ | -
> wanl Doy
— R - -
. - | - _ ™
\//. 3 - =1\ | )
/NN o L \ |
r r 4 \ f - = .._ - | V=
s g f \ | .
[+ J 4 : r,. ./ 1 - 4 U A.
| — g ’ , L =
- - - N\ -
") " 3 4
\ =\ - g -.I4 0 \ .|
’ \ . .
— et [+ |
) ‘e - I | e
L \ . (Trem !
\ £
1 3
\ - ] - i =
| qu- - P By , CAIUN
4 ol _ . . A \ =
- - \
- - o . |
1 f el | -
~ |
\
|
| —
]
Ward Bdy
CR Z
| | L v
- \ |
/ \ \ \ | 10 |
g \ | _, j| &= :
< \ .. - i B
p \ . |
.,.; /.,. i [ \ \
f . A \ kL L J
f /& .
: Y
| - S
-
= .
) 1 | =
e \
~ A -
\ \ \
\ & | \
r L T2
| . .
\ e -

Page 56



N | 7
t €117 .

EXISTING REAR VIEW

Existing Elevations

rlll Illﬁ-l.--fﬂ' Ll

Elmlﬁ

EXSHNG SIDE VIEW

9 wa)| epuaby



Proposed Elevations

0 b Rl ey e e

Agenda Item 6




Existing
Q
(@)
(0]
(éx
(o]

7.9m

3m

Proposed

9 wa)| epuaby



9 wa)| epuaby



Agenda Item 7

Planning Performance Information
Quarter Two (1 July 2024 — 30 September 2024)

Responsible Portfolio Holder Councillor Kit Taylor
Responsible Head of Service Ruth Bamford

1.0 Purpose of Report

1.1 To receive an item of information in relation to planning performance and the
outcomes of recent planning appeal decisions. Officers will answer any
related questions at the meeting as necessary.

2.0 Recommendation
2.1  The Committee is asked to RESOLVE that this item of information is noted.
3.0 Report

3.1 This report provides details on the determination timescales for planning
applications and planning appeals at Bromsgrove District Council when tested
against the Government set timescales. This paper seeks to provide
Members with a quarterly breakdown where applicable. Appendix One to this
report contains a list of planning appeals determined in the relevant quarter.

4.0 Planning Statistics

4.1  On a quarterly basis, Local Planning Authorities supply information to the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) on
planning application type, volume, the speed of determination and other
matters such as the number of planning Enforcement Notices, Breach of
Condition Notices, Certificates of Lawfulness and Notification applications.
The Government then use this information to publish planning performance
data for each Local Authority that assesses the speed of decision making and
the quality of decision making for major and non-major applications.

4.2  The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government publishes the
document ‘Improving Planning Performance’. This sets out that a local
planning authorities’ performance is based on two measures, that of the
speed and the quality of their decisions on planning applications for major and
non-major development. The document sets out the relevant performance
targets and the concept of being designated if targets are not met. It also sets
out that the assessment periods have traditionally been over a 2-year period
(with a 9-month lag for the quality measure to enable the processing of
associated appeals).

4.3 In December 2024, the Government updated its criteria document. The

updated document retains the same performance thresholds but confirms the
new assessment periods which includes a change to the assessment period

Page 61



5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

Agenda Item 7

for speed of decision-making from 24 months to 12 months. This change has
been made so designation decisions are made on more up-to-date data and
are more responsive to changes in performance and will come into effect for
the period ending September 2024. The updated document will be used for
designation decisions in the first quarter of 2025 and 2026. There are no
changes regarding the period over which the quality measure is assessed.

Speed of Decision-Making

Planning performance is now based on a one-year rolling assessment period
and measures the speed of decision-making.

Speed of decision-making is measured by the proportion of applications that
are decided within the statutory determination period (8 weeks for non-major
applications and 13 weeks for major applications), or an agreed extended
period of time.

The Government requires a minimum of 60% of major and 70% of non-major
applications to be determined in time, or within an agreed extension of time.

Underperformance for speed of decision-making is when a Local Planning
Authority determines a lesser proportion of applications in time compared to
the required threshold.

6.0

Bromsgrove District Council Speed of Decision-Making Figures

e Speed of decision-making for major applications over the rolling two-year
period = 88.8%

e Speed of decision-making for non-major applications over rolling two-year
period = 84.5%

NB: The Government requires a minimum of 60% of major applications and
70% of non-major applications to be determined in time, or within an
agreed extension of time.

Source: These are internal Officer level calculations as previously reported
based on the rolling two-year period. As detailed in paragraph 4.3, the
Government updated its criteria document in December 2024. This confirmed
a change to the assessment period for the speed of decision-making from 24
months to 12 months, with this change coming into effect for the period
ending September 2024. It is anticipated the relevant statistics based on the
new criteria will be released by the MCHLG in mid-January.

7.0

71

Quality of Decision-Making

The information on the quality of decision making looks at the Local Planning
Authority’s performance over a two-year period. The performance data looks

Page 62



7.2

7.3

7.4

Agenda Item 7

at the number of major and non-major applications determined by the District
Council, how many have been refused, how many decisions have been
appealed and how many appeals have been allowed. It then expresses the
result of a percentage of the total applications in those categories.

Quality of decision-making is measured by the proportion of total decisions, or
non-determinations, that are allowed at appeal. Fundamentally the
performance measure is assessing how many applications the Authority has
refused that have gone to appeal and the decision has been overturned by
the Planning Inspectorate. The Government have set the maximum threshold
that no Authority should exceed 10% of decisions overturned at appeal.

The current published data runs for the period July 2021 - June 2023. The
data is intentionally nine months behind the date of publication to allow a time
lag for appeals in the pipeline to be determined.

Underperformance for quality of decision-making (represented by the
proportion of applications that are subsequently overturned at appeal) is when
an Authority achieves a higher proportion of applications overturned at appeal
compared to the required threshold.

8.0

Bromsgrove District Council Quality of Decision-Making Figures

¢ Quality of decision-making for major applications for the most recent
period available (July 2021 — June 2023) = 4.8%

e Quality of decision-making for non-major applications for the most recent
period available (July 2021 — June 2023) = 2.1%

NB: The Government requires that no Local Planning Authority should
exceed 10% of decisions overturned at appeal.

Source: Table 152a and 154 Live tables on planning application statistics -
GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Published performance statistics for quality remains as previously reported
(relating to the period July 2021 — June 23). The MCHLG anticipates updating
these figures in mid-January.

9.0

9.1

Further Statistical Information

Members can access further information relating specifically to applications
received and determined, application types, outcomes and those relating to a
particular geographical area of the District, by using the Public Access
advanced search and completing the relevant drop-down options. Guidance
on how to use the advanced search function of Public Access can be found in
the Public Access User Guide.

Page 63



Agenda Item 7

9.2  Planning Application statistics for all Local Planning Authorities across
England are also published on a quarterly basis by MHCLG. Information on
planning application statistical performance is available on the GOV.UK live
tables. The tables can be accessed here: Live tables on planning application
statistics - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).

9.3 The Planning Inspectorate also publishes statistics in relation to their
timeliness with planning appeals, which can be accessed here: Statistics at
The Planning Inspectorate - Planning Inspectorate - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

9.4 The Government is also promoting the ‘Planning Performance Dashboard’
Planning Performance Dashboard Table Final.xlsx which shows the
proportion of decisions made by a local planning authority with, and without,
the use of Extension of Time agreements. Government considers providing
this level of information enhances the transparency of planning performance
data.

10.0 Bromsgrove District Council Appeal Decisions

e Number of major appeals allowed in Quarter 2 and dismissed in Quarter 2:
Allowed =2
Dismissed =0

e Number of non-major appeals allowed in Quarter 2 and dismissed in Quarter
2:
Allowed = 8
Dismissed = 10

10.1 A list of appeal decisions received in Quarter 2 are provided in Appendix One
attached to this report.

11.0 Financial, Legal, Policy and Risk Implications

11.1 Itis important to manage and monitor the speed of decision-making and the
quality of decision-making.

12.0 Consultation

12.1  There has been no consultation other than with relevant District Council
Officers.

13.0 Author of Report

13.1 The author of this report is Dale Birch (Development Management Manager)
who can be contacted on 01527 881341 or
d.birch@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk for more information.

14.0 Appendices

Page 64


https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistical-data-sets/live-tables-on-planning-application-statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate/about/statistics
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate/about/statistics
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fmedia%2F66ec38e0c8398625c331e7eb%2FPlanning_Performance_Dashboard_Table_Final.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
mailto:d.birch@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7

14.1 Appendix One
Appeal Decisions: Quarter Two

Page 65



Agenda Item 7

Appendix One

Appeal Decisions: Quarter Two

Major Appeal Decisions Quarter 2 (2)

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal
Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal

Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

22/01419/FUL

Planning Committee
APP/P1805/W/24/3339483

Land to the rear of 1-6 Smedley Crooke Place,
Hopwood

34 affordable houses

Allowed with full costs against the Council

16 July 2024

22/00469/FUL

Planning Committee

APP/P1805/W/23/3334752

The Stables, Dale Lane, Lickey End, Bromsgrove
Mixed use for stationing caravans for residential use
and the keeping of horses, with dayrooms and existing
stable ancillary to that use

Allowed with partial costs against the Council

10 September 2024

Non-Major Appeal Decisions Quarter 2 (18)

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal

23/01242/FUL

Delegated
APP/P1805/D/24/3342380

10 Station Road, Blackwell
Detached garden in the front garden

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 4 July 2024
Application Reference = 23/00969/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

APP/P1805/W/24/3336960

94 Cobnall Road, Catshill,

3-bedroom detached dwelling with associated parking
and new access for existing dwelling

Dismissed

4 July 2024

Page 66



Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal

Inspectorate Decision

Agenda Item 7

23/00391/FUL

Delegated

APP/P1805/W/23/3329267

Bordesley Hall Farm, Storrage Lane, Alvechurch
Demolition of existing office buildings and erection of 2
no. dwellings, car parking and associated works.
Dismissed

Date of Decision 5 July 2024
Application Reference 23/01027/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

APP/P1805/W/24/3338450
Shady Rock Cottage, Bromsgrove Road, Clent

Proposal Conversion and extension of outbuilding to create 2
bed dwelling with parking.

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 8 July 2024

Application Reference 23/00526/FUL

Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

APP/P1805/\W/23/3334384
53 Brookhouse Road, Barnt Green
Two-storey detached dwelling

Inspectorate Decision Dismissed
Date of Decision 10 July 2024
Application Reference 23/00894/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal
Inspectorate Decision

APP/P1805/D/24/3341678

Appletrees, Hanbury Road, Stoke Prior

Detached garage and entrance gate (retrospective)
Dismissed

Date of Decision 11 July 2024
Application Reference 23/01018/AGR
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

APP/P1805/W/24/3338747

Land at Cobley Hill, Grange Lane, Alvechurch
Construction of an agricultural building and
hardstanding

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 16 July 2024
Application Reference 23/01009/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Page 67



Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

Agenda Item 7

APP/P1805/W/23/3336184

7 Alcester Road, Finstall, Bromsgrove
New access with the demolition of existing garage and
rear sheds and erection of 2 x 2 bedroom dormer
bungalows with garages.

Inspectorate Decision Dismissed
Date of Decision 19 July 2024
Application Reference 22/01314/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

APP/P1805/W/23/3326231

Land off Whettybridge Road, Rubery

Proposed access and the erection of 2 pairs of 3 bed
semi-detached dwellings. 4 dwellings in total.
Dismissed

29 July 2024

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

23/01150/PIP

Delegated
APP/P1805/W/23/3335104

263 Bromsgrove Road, Hunnington

Proposal Permission in Principle - erection of
minimum/maximum two dwellings

Inspectorate Decision Dismissed

Date of Decision 29 July 2024

Application Reference 24/00148/FUL

Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal
Inspectorate Decision

APP/P1805/W/24/3342400

57 Marlbrook Lane, Marlbrook

Front first storey extension above existing porch
Allowed

Date of Decision 9 August 2024
Application Reference 23/00691/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site
Proposal

APP/P1805/W/23/3336028
Walcote Annexe, Dagnell End Road, Redditch
Replacement dwelling

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 16 August 2024
Application Reference 23/01156/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference

APP/P1805/D/24/3339618

Page 68



Site
Proposal

Agenda Item 7

518 Haslucks Green Road, Majors Green

Addition of a third storey within the loft area of the
dwelling, with associated alterations including raising
the height of the roof.

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 23 August 2024
Application Reference 23/00437/FUL
Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

APP/P1805/W/23/3334745
Lynford, 2 Stourbridge Road, Fairfield

Proposal Demolition of existing bungalow and redevelopment of
land to provide six residential dwellings

Inspectorate Decision Dismissed

Date of Decision 28 August 2024

Application Reference 24/00085/FUL

Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

APP/P1805/W/24/3343409
135 Crabtree Lane, Bromsgrove

Proposal Demolition of existing garage and erection of new
dwelling

Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 28 August 2024

Application Reference 23/00829/FUL

Decision Status Delegated

Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal
Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

APP/P1805/W/24/3342054

55-61 Fiery Hill Road, Barnt Green
Erection of single storey dwellinghouse
Dismissed

18 September 2024

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference
Site

Proposal

Inspectorate Decision
Date of Decision

23/00728/CPE

Delegated

APP/P1805/X/23/3332759

Primrose Nurseries, Fairfield Road, Bournheath
The use for which a certificate of lawful use or
development is sought is B8: storage or distribution
Dismissed

24 September 2024

Application Reference
Decision Status
Appeal Reference

23/00977/PIP
Delegated
APP/P1805/W/23/3332459

Page 69



Agenda Item 7

Site Land adjoining 39 Parish Hill, Bournheath
Proposal Infill residential development of up to 2 dwellings.
Inspectorate Decision Allowed

Date of Decision 26 September 2024

Page 70



	Agenda
	5 24/00246/REM - Reserved Matters Application for Phase 2. 437 residential units (Class C3) on land abutting Kidderminster Road/Perryfields Road, in accordance with the Outline Planning Permission for 1,300 dwellings (application reference 16/0335) allowed at appeal under reference APP/ P1805/W/20/3265948. The Reserved Matters application seeks consent in line with condition 1 for detailed matters of appearance, landscaping, layout, and scale.Land at Kidderminister Road, Bromsgrove. Taylor Wimpey UK Ltd.
	Officer Presentation - 24.00246.REM - Land at Kidderminster Road / Perryfields Road
	Slide 1:  Land At Kidderminster Road Bromsgrove
	Slide 2: Site Location Plan
	Slide 3: Site layout plan
	Slide 4
	Slide 5: Connectivity Plan
	Slide 6: Streetscenes
	Slide 7: Streetscenes
	Slide 8: Street scenes
	Slide 9: Sample of housetypes
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21: L shaped apartment building next to the roundabout 
	Slide 22
	Slide 23: Apartment buildings along main route corridor
	Slide 24


	6 24/01218/FUL - Single storey rear extension to provide larger kitchen/dining/family area. 477 Birmingham Road, Marlbrook, Worcestershire, B61 0HZ. Mr. A. Godwin
	Officer Presentation 24.01218.FUL - 477 Birmingham Road

	7 Planning Performance Information - Quarter Two (1 July 2024 - 30 September 2024)

